
Tuesday, 6 December 2022 

SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

Delegated Executive Decisions 

On Thursday, 15 December 2022, on the rising of the meeting of the Management Team, the 
following report(s) will be considered under powers delegated to Portfolio Holders, the Chief 
Executive and Directors for the discharge of the Council’s Cabinet functions carried out within their 
area of responsibility. 
 
Copies of these reports have been sent to the relevant Portfolio Holders (and all Members of the 
Cabinet for information), the Chief Executive, all Directors and the Monitoring Officer. 
 
Cabinet Members, or any of the other consultees, may object to the report within five working days 
- by 5.00 p.m. on, Wednesday, 14 December 2022 - by notifying the Officer named on the report 
of the objection and requesting that the matter be referred to the next meeting of the Cabinet for 
determination. 

 Page Nos. 

PART I   

1  ASSET OF COMMUNITY VALUE NOMINATION - KENDAL MOUNTAIN 
SEARCH AND RESCUE TEAM BASE, BUSHER WALK, KENDAL  

3 - 20 

 To consider the nomination to enter the Kendal Mountain Search and Rescue 
Team Base, Busher Walk, Kendal onto the list of successful nominations of 
Assets of Community Value. 

 

PART II   

Private Section (exempt reasons under Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) 
(Variation) Order 2006, specified by way of paragraph number) 

There are no items in this part of the Agenda. 

 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



South Lakeland District Council 

Delegated Executive Decisions 

Date of Proposed Decision: Thursday, 15 December 2022 

Asset of Community Value Nomination - Kendal 
Mountain Search and Rescue Team Base, 

Busher Walk, Kendal 

 

Portfolio:   Customer and Locality Services Portfolio Holder 

Decision Maker: Director of Customer and Commercial Services 

Report Author: Tom Dugdale – Case Management Officer 

Wards:  Kendal North; 

Forward Plan: N/A 

Links to Council Plan Priorities:  

Working across boundaries – N/A 

Delivering a balanced community – Working with communities to reduce isolation and 

loneliness 

A fairer South Lakeland – N/A 

Addressing the climate emergency – N/A 

 

1.0 Expected Outcome 

1.1 Entry of the Kendal Mountain Search and Rescue Team Base, Busher Walk, Kendal 
onto the list of unsuccessful nominations of Assets of Community Value. 

2.0 Proposed Decision 

2.1 It is recommended that the Director of Customer and Commercial Services:- 

 Agrees that the Kendal Mountain Search and Rescue Team Base, Busher Walk, 
Kendal as identified on the plan attached be entered on to South Lakeland 
District Council’s list of unsuccessful nominations of Assets of Community 
Value. 

3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1 A nomination to list the Kendal Mountain Search and Rescue Team Base as an 
Asset of Community Value was submitted by Kendal Mountain Search and Rescue 
Team (KMSRT) (Company Number 06666537) on 26 October 2022. 

3.2 In accordance with s89(2)(b)(iii) of the Localism Act 2011, KMSRT are eligible to 
make a community nomination in respect of the asset and have a local connection. 

3.3 The KMSRT Base is owned by Cumbria County Council, with the main, non-ancillary 
use, of the building being that of a Mountain Rescue Post. 

Page 3

Item No.1



3.4 The nomination states that the asset is essential to the effective functioning of 
KMSRT, providing a base for the team to launch numerous rescue operations over 
the years. The nomination states that KMSRT responds to an average of 60 callouts 
per year, with the base being required to operate these rescues. The nomination 
states that communities gain reassurance that there is an organisation of trained 
volunteers ready to assist them in an emergency. 

3.5 The nomination does not provide any evidence that the community make use of, or 
have access to, the asset, or are likely to do so in the future. 

3.6 Section 88 of the Localism Act 2011 states that a building or other land can be 
considered as an asset of community value if: 

a) There is a time in the recent past when the actual use of the building (that 
was not an ancillary use) furthered the social wellbeing or interests of the 
local community. 

b) It is realistic to think that there is a time in the next five years where there 
could be a non-ancillary use of the asset that would further the social 
wellbeing or social interests of the local community. 

3.7 In accordance with the legislation, it is not apparent, on the basis of the nomination, 
that the current or recent non-ancillary use of the asset furthers the social well-being 
and social interests of the community, or is likely to do so in the future. The main 
evidence provided in the nomination relates to the work done by KMSRT, with the 
asset serving as a base for these activities. Although it could be stated that KMSRT 
as an organisation may meet the criteria set out in the legislation, there is no 
evidence to suggest that the actual use of the asset does. It is therefore proposed 
that the nominated asset be added to the list of unsuccessful nominations.   

4.0 Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

1 KMSRT Base, Busher Walk, Kendal – ACV Nomination Form 

2 KMSRT Base, Busher Walk, Kendal – ACV Location Plan 

3 KMSRT Base, Busher Walk, Kendal – ACV Assessment Form 

 

5.0 Consultation 

5.1 The Council has notified the assets owner (Cumbria County Council) of the 
nomination. 

5.2 The assessment of the nomination was carried out by a Case Management Officer in 
liaison with the Performance, Innovation and Commissioning Specialist. 

5.3 In line with the Cabinet decision on 20 March 2019, delegated authority is given to 
the Director of Customer and Commercial Services, in consultation with the 
Customer and Locality Services Portfolio Holder, to make the decision as to whether 
the nominated asset is added to the list. 

5.4 In accordance with Section 91 of the Localism Act 2011 the Council will send notice 
to all relevant parties of its decision in respect of the nomination. 

5.5 The District Councillors for the Kendal North Ward and Kendal Town Council have 
been notified of the nomination. Kendal Town Council have supported the 
nomination.  

Page 4



6.0 Alternative Options 

6.1 An alternative option would be to list the land as an asset of community value. 
However it is likely that it could be proven on appeal that the listing would not satisfy 
the requirements of the relevant legislation. 

7.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

7.1 There are no financial or resources implications. 

Human Resources 

7.2 There are no human resources implications. 

Legal 

7.3 Under Section 87 of the Localism Act 2011 the Council must maintain a list of 
assets of community value. 

7.3.1 Section 88 of the Localism Act 2011 states that a building or other land is, or 
may be, an asset of community value if, in the opinion of the Authority: 

 The property is actually used, or was used in the recent past, for an 
activity that was not an ancillary use and which furthered the social 
wellbeing or interests of the local community; and 

 It is realistic to think that there can continue to be non-ancillary use of 
the property which will further (whether or not in the same way) the 
social wellbeing or social interests of the local community’ or 

 It is realistic to think that there is a time in the next five years when there 
could be non-ancillary use of the property that would further (whether or not 
in the same way as before) the social wellbeing or social interests of the 
local community. 

7.3.2 On the basis of the evidence provided in the nomination in this case, officers 
have determined that the necessary criteria of Section 88 of the Localism Act 
2011 has not been met. 

 
Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.4 Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact 
Assessment? Yes  

7.5 A building or other land is an asset of community value if its main use has recently 
been or is presently used to further the social wellbeing or social interests of the local 
community and could do so in the future. The Localism Act 2011 states that social 
interests include cultural, recreational and sporting interests. 

7.6 Summary of Health and Sustainability Impacts 

 Positive Neutral Negative Unknown 

Environment 
and Health 

Greenhouse gases 
emissions 

 X   

 Air Quality  X   

 Biodiversity  X   

 Impacts of Climate Change  X   

Page 5



 Reduced or zero 
requirement for energy, 
building space, materials or 
travel 

 X   

 Active Travel  X   

Economy 
and Culture 

Inclusive and sustainable 
development 

 X   

 Jobs and levels of pay  X   

 Healthier high streets X    

 Culture, creativity and 
heritage 

X    

Housing and 
Communities 

Standard of housing  X   

 Access to housing  X   

 Crime  X   

 Social connectedness X    

 

Equality and Diversity 

7.7 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No 

7.8 There are no foreseeable adverse impacts on any single equality group arising out of 
the legislation relating to Assets of Community Value. 

7.9 Summary of Equality and Diversity impacts 

Please indicate: P = Positive impact; 0 = Neutral; N = Negative; Enter “X” 

Age P X 0  N  

Disability P X 0  N  

Gender reassignment (transgender) P  0 X N  

Marriage & civil partnership P  0 X N  

Pregnancy & maternity P  0 X N  

Race/ethnicity P  0 X N  

Religion or belief P  0 X N  

Sex/gender P  0 X N  

Sexual orientation P  0 X N  

Armed forces families P  0 X N  

Rurality P X 0  N  

Socio-economic disadvantage P X 0  N  

 

Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

The Council fails to meet the 

statutory deadlines for 

responses and publication of 

lists 

The Council faces challenge 
on the way in which it 
addresses nominations for 
Assets of Community Value 

Appropriate procedures 

put in place to achieve the 

Council’s obligations  

The Council may be required 

to bear the burden of 

administering any initial 

appeals in respect of either 

nominations or compensation 

decisions  

The Council’s financial and 

other resources would be 

used to address any appeal  

Appropriate procedures 
put in place to achieve the  

Council’s obligations  

Page 6



Risk Consequence Controls required 

Listed assets of community 

value not added to the local 

land charge register  

Reputational challenge  Appropriate procedures 

put in place to achieve the 

Council’s obligations  

Contact Officers 

Tom Dugdale – Case Management Officer. 793269 t.dugdale@southlakeland.gov.uk  

Background Documents Available 

Name of Background document Where it is available 

Community Right to Bid: 
Nonstatutory advice for 
local authorities 

DCLG Website 

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent Date Signed off 

Legal Services 21/11/2022 21/11/2022 

Section 151 Officer 22/11/2022 29/11/2022 

Monitoring Officer 21/11/2022 21/11/2022 

CMT N/A N/A 

 

Circulated to Date sent 

Lead Specialist 09/11/2022 

Human Resources Lead Specialist N/A 

Communications Team N/A 

Leader N/A 

Committee Chairman N/A 

Portfolio Holder N/A 

Ward Councillor(s) N/A 

Committee N/A 

Executive (Cabinet) N/A 

Council N/A 

 

Note – Report authors must consult the relevant Portfolio Holder, members of the 
Corporate Management Team, the Monitoring Officer, and any other interested parties 
before a decision can be taken. If any objections are received, they must be reported 
at the meeting before the decision is taken. 

Signed by:- Title:- 

 

 

 

 

Page 7

mailto:t.dugdale@southlakeland.gov.uk
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/14880/Community_Right_to_Bid_-_Non-statutory_advice_note_for_local_authorities.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



Case Reference 1426082 - Updated 02/Nov/2022 
1 

APPENDIX 1 
 

 

An asset of community value nomination 

Case Reference: 1426082 
 
 
 

Tell us about you 

Name  

Contact preference Mobile Telephone 

Mobile Number  

Home Number  

Email Address  

Address - Post code Kendal Mountain Search And Rescue 
 
Busher 

Walk 
Kendal 
LA9 4RH 

 
 

Tell us about your Organisation 

Organisation name Kendal Mountain Search and Rescue Team 

Is the contact persons address same as above Yes 

Address  

Contact Name  

Position in organisation Chair 

Organisation Telephone number  

Type of Organisation Company limited by guarantee 

Registration number of charity (if applicable) 1125680 

Registration number of company (if applicable) 06666537 

Local Connection Detail Kendal Mountain Search and Rescue Team (KMSRT) is an 
organisation entirely staffed by volunteers living in South 

Lakeland area. KMSRT is registered charity number 
1125680. We are reliant entirely on donations to provide 

our service free of charge to the public. 

 
MSRT provide assistance to the statutory emergency 

services, specifically in relation to search and rescue 
operations in and around the Kendal area. We are based 

at Busher Walk. 

 
KMSRT covers an area from the Howgill Fells to the 

Page 9



Case Reference 1426082 - Updated 02/Nov/2022 
2 

APPENDIX 1 
 

 

lakeshore of Windermere and from the Kentmere, 
Longsleddale and Bannisdale valleys down to the 
coast. 

Details of number of members registered  

Details of distribution of surplus funds  

Memorandum and Articles of Association (for a 
company) 

Yes 

Trust Deed (for a trust) No 

Page 10



Case Reference 1426082 - Updated 02/Nov/2022 
3 

APPENDIX 1 
 

 

Constitution and/or rules (for other organisations) No 
 

Information on the Nomination 

What is being nominated KMSRT base of operations located on Busher Walk 

Name of premises or land Mountain Rescue Post 

Address Kendal Mountain Search And Rescue 
 
Busher 
Walk 
Kendal 
LA9 4RH 

 

Current Occupants 

Kendal Mountain Search And Rescue 
 

Current or last known details of those owning the freehold of the land 

Cumbria County Council 

117 Botchergate 

Carlisle 

CA1 1RD 
 

Current or last known details of those owning the freehold of the land 

Kendal Mountain Search And Rescue 

Busher Walk 

Kendal 

LA9 4RH 
 

Information on Community value 

Section B3 - Details on community value  

What is the main, and non-ancillary, use of the land or 
premises being nominated? 

The land serves as a base of operations for KMSRT. It has 
garaging for vehicles; facilities for the drying and secure 

storage of equipment; a meeting/ training room & a 
control room equipped to co-ordinate search and rescue 

operations. 

 
Without it KMSRT would not be able achieve its 
objectives of recruiting, training and equipping a team 
of volunteers who are willing and able to search for and 
rescue any persons (or animals) in distress primarily in 
the Lakeland and Cumbria Fells and in other areas as 
directed by the police. 

Page 11



Case Reference 1426082 - Updated 02/Nov/2022 
4 

APPENDIX 1 
 

 

How does the asset further the social well-being and 
social interest of the community? 

It is essential to the effective functioning of KMSRT. 
 
KMSRT has helped countless individuals in the 
community as well as visitors since it was formed in 
1953. These have been both within a mountain 
environment, but also within urban areas during events 
such as flooding and when casualties are in difficult to 
evacuate from such as Kendal Castle. 

What is the current level of use of the asset and who 
uses it? (Please provide examples) 

KMSRT currently responds to an average of 60 callouts by 
the emergency services per year. Callouts require 

members to attend base to travel to the location of the 
emergency. Typically base is manned during callouts to 

assist with co-ordination and communication. During 
protracted searches / events, it may also provide welfare 

facilities and an assembly point for other organisations. 

Furthermore, in order to maintain the team in a state of 
readiness base is used for training our volunteers 
typically and for managing the organisation, amounting 

to it being busy once a week. 

There is ad hoc use by individuals to pack and maintain 
equipment etc. It is occasionally used for presentations 

and talks to organisations such as the Scouts and cadet 
units. 
It is occasionally used by other organisations to provide 
training space 

Do particular communities of interest or need use it? 
(Please provide examples) 

No 

Page 12



Case Reference 1426082 - Updated 02/Nov/2022 
5 

APPENDIX 1 
 

 

What do communities gain from their use of the asset 
and what would be the impact if it were lost? 

Communities gain the reassurance that there is an 

organisation of trained volunteers who will help them (if 
requested via the Emergency Services) at anytime of the 

day or night should they find themselves in distress in 
the South Lakeland Area. There is a genuine risk that 

without a central base the team would fold. 

 
KMSRT has looked at whether there are any other 
suitable premises that are as central and well located as 
the current base on several occasions. KMSRT has 
concluded that no other location would be as convenient 
for the effective operation of the team 

Does the use of the asset reduce isolation? No 

Please provide an example of how asset reduces 
isolation 

 

Does the use of the asset address the needs of 
disadvantaged members of the community? 

No 

Please provide an example of how it address the needs 
of disadvantaged members of the community? 

 

Does the use of the asset reach vulnerable people? Yes 

Please provide an example of how the use of the 
asset reaches vulnerable people? 

The team has searched for numerous missing and 
vulnerable people, who have gone missing from care 
and from institutions such as Witherslack school. 

Does the use of the asset support community 
cohesion and involvement? 

No 

Please provide an example of how the use of the asset 
support community cohesion and involvement? 

 

Does the use of the asset enable communities to be 
self-supporting? 

Yes 

Please provide an example of how the use of the 
asset enable communities to be self-supporting? 

A prime example of this was during the Storm Desmond 
flooding. The police were able to relocate to the asset 
as their building was partially flooded and in case were 
over stretched due to the event. For a period of time 
during Storm Desmond flooding, Kendal was effectively 
cut off from outside help. KMSRT responded to 
numerous requests for assistance and carried out 
welfare checks on vulnerable people as requested to. 

Does the use of the asset increase access to positive 
activities? 

Yes 

Please provide an example of how the use of the 
asset increase access to positive activities? 

By providing reassurance to people that they can access 
lakeland fells and should they become lost or otherwise 
injured they will be rescued without cost to them. 

Page 13



Case Reference 1426082 - Updated 02/Nov/2022 
6 

APPENDIX 1 
 

 

Does the community feel strongly that the asset 
should be retained as a community asset? - Please 
explain why 

I believe this to be the case. The community supports 

KMSRT in its fundraising and evidence of interactions 
with the public and on social media suggests that it is 

a well respected organisation. 

 
I expect the community would be alarmed if we no 
longer had a permanent central base of operations in 
Kendal or were forced to move out of Kendal. 

 

Could the asset realistically continue to be used for this 
or another qualifying community purpose? - Consider 
whether its current use could be sustained or if another 
community use could be achieved within five years 

Yes. There is nothing that would prevent the continued 
use of the asset as a Mountain Rescue Post 

 

Page 14



Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16



APPENDIX 3 
 

Asset of Community Value Assessment – South Lakeland District Council 

 

Nominate By: Kendal Mountain Search and Rescue Team (KMSRT) 

Number of Nominations: 1 

Date of Submission: 26 October 2022 

Address of Nomination: Kendal Mountain Rescue Search and Rescue Team Base, Busher Walk, 
Kendal LA9 4RH 

Date of DED: 15 December 2022 

 

Section One - Eligible Criteria 

Eligible Criteria YES NO Further Comments 

Is the nominating body eligible to 
nominate? 

 

 KMSRT are a Company limited by 
guarantee  

Does the nominating body have a 
connection to the nomination? 

 

 KMSRT are based at the asset 

Is the nominated asset outside of one of 
the categories that cannot be assets of 
community value? 

   

 

Section Two – Determining Usage 

 YES NO Further Comments 

1.) Is there evidence of the use being 
described in the nomination? 

 

 The nomination states that the 
asset serves as a base for KMSRT. 

Is this the main, and non-ancillary, use 
of the land or premises? 

 

 The nomination states that the 
main, and non-ancillary, use of the 
premises is that of a Mountain 
Rescue Post. 

Or has it been its use within the last 12 
months? 

 

  

 

 YES NO Further Comments 

2.) Does this use further the social well-
being and social interest of the 
community? 

  The nomination states that the 
asset is essential to the effective 
functioning of KMSRT, providing a 
base for the team to launch 
numerous rescue operations over 
the years. However there is no 
evidence provided that the use of 
the base furthers the social well-
being or social interest of the 
community.  

Page 17



APPENDIX 3 
 

What is the current level of use of the 
asset and who uses it? 

  The nomination states that KMSRT 
responds to an average of 60 
callouts by the emergency services 
per year, with the base being 
required to operate these rescues. 
However there is no evidence in the 
nomination of the community’s 
level of use of the asset.  

Is it used by particular communities of 
interest or need? 

 

 

 

What do communities gain from their 
use of the asset and what would be the 
impact if it were lost? 

  The nomination states that 
communities gain reassurance that 
there is an organisation of trained 
volunteers ready to assist them in 
an emergency. However there is no 
evidence to show what 
communities gain from their use of 
the actual asset.  

 

 YES NO Further Comments 

3.) What is the nature of social well 
being and social interest which the 
asset particularly supports? 

   

Does the use of the asset do the  
following: 
 

 Reduce isolation 
 

 

 

 

 Address the needs of 
disadvantage members of the 
community 

 

   

 Reach vulnerable people 
 

 

 

The nomination states that KMSRT 
have searched for missing and 
vulnerable people. However there is 
no evidence to show that use of the 
actual asset has reached vulnerable 
people. 

 Support community cohesion 
and involvement 

 

   

 Enable communities to be self 
supporting 

 

  The nomination states that during 
Storm Desmond the police were 
able to relate to the asset. However 
there is no evidence to show that 
use of the actual asset enables 
communities to be self-supporting. 

Page 18



APPENDIX 3 
 

 Increase access to positive 
activities 

 

 

The nomination states that KMSRT 
provides reassurance to people that 
the can access Lakeland Fells and be 
rescued if required. However there 
is no evidence to show that use of 
the actual asset increases access to 
positive activities. 

 

4.) Does the community feel strongly that the 
asset should be retained as a community asset? 

The nomination states that the community 
supports KMSRT in its fund raising, interactions 
and on social media, and it is expected that the 
community would be alarmed if KMSRT no 
longer had a permanent central base. However 
there is no evidence provided to show that 
there is a strong feeling from the community 
that the actual asset should be retained. 

 

5.) Could the asset realistically continue to be 
used for this or another qualifying community 
purpose (or could this be achieved within the 
next five years)? 

The nomination states that there is nothing 
that would prevent the continued use of the 
asset as a Mountain Rescue Post. 

 

Section Four - Non-ancillary use of the building or other land. 

Officers are asked to consider the following questions, where appropriate, in relation to non-

ancillary usage: 

 Yes No Comments 

Has the building/land legal requirement 
for this usage changed significantly that 
the asset is not fit for purpose? 

  N/A 

Could the asset be made fit for purpose 
practically and within reasonable 
resource requirements and within 
timescales? 

  N/A 

 

Recommendation and reasons for: 

Recommendation: Exclude the nomination from being listed on the asset register. 
 
Reasons: 
 
Legislation – This states that an asset can be listed as a community asset if its principle use 
furthers (or has recently furthered) the community’s social well-being or social interests and is 
likely to do so in the future. There is no evidence provided in the nomination to suggest that this 
criteria can be met. 
 

Page 19



APPENDIX 3 
 

Public Access – The main, non-ancillary use, of the asset is that of a Mountain Rescue Base. The 
nomination does not provide evidence that the asset is currently accessible to the community, or 
will be in the near future. 
 
Evidence – The main evidence provided in the nomination relates to the work that KMSRT do, 
with the asset serving as a base for these activities. Although it could be stated that KMSRT as an 
organisation may meet the criteria set out in the legislation, there is no evidence to suggest the 
use of the actual asset does. There is no evidence to show that the community can make use of 
the asset. 

 

 

Page 20


	Agenda
	1 Asset of Community Value Nomination - Kendal Mountain Search and Rescue Team Base, Busher Walk, Kendal
	Asset of Community Value Nomination - Kendal Mountain Search and Rescue Team Base, Busher Walk, Kendal  - Appendix 1
	APPENDIX2_KMSRT Base_Busher Walk_Kendal_ACV Location Plan
	APPENDIX3_KMSRT Base_Busher Walk_Kendal_ACV Assessment Form




